

iWay

Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition Getting Started Guide

Release 3.9

Active Technologies, EDA, EDA/SQL, FIDEL, FOCUS, Information Builders, the Information Builders logo, iWay, iWay Software, Parlay, PC/FOCUS, RStat, Table Talk, Web390, WebFOCUS, WebFOCUS Active Technologies, and WebFOCUS Magnify are registered trademarks, and DataMigrator and Hyperstage are trademarks of Information Builders, Inc.

Adobe, the Adobe logo, Acrobat, Adobe Reader, Flash, Adobe Flash Builder, Flex, and PostScript are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated in the United States and/or other countries.

Due to the nature of this material, this document refers to numerous hardware and software products by their trademarks. In most, if not all cases, these designations are claimed as trademarks or registered trademarks by their respective companies. It is not this publisher's intent to use any of these names generically. The reader is therefore cautioned to investigate all claimed trademark rights before using any of these names other than to refer to the product described.

Copyright © 2019, by Information Builders, Inc. and iWay Software. All rights reserved. Patent Pending. This manual, or parts thereof, may not be reproduced in any form without the written permission of Information Builders, Inc.

Contents

Preface	5
Documentation Conventions	5
Related Publications	6
Customer Support	6
Help Us to Serve You Better	7
User Feedback	8
iWay Software Training and Professional Services	8
1. Introducing Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition	9
Why Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition?	9
Highlights of Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition	9
2. Installing Omni-Gen TM Personal Edition \dots	11
System Requirements	
Considerations and Limitations	
Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64)	12
Data Source Names.	12
SQL Server Non-dbo Schemas	13
Windows Defender	13
Excel Data Support	13
Support for the Datetime Datatype	14
Installing Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition	14
Accessing Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition From the Windows Application Menu	27
3. Navigating the Omni-Gen TM Personal Edition User Interface \dots	29
Title Bar	
View Mode	30
Menu Bar	30
Loaded Data Summary View	31
Workspace Header	32
Filter Bar	32
Workspace Area	33
4. Working With Data	35
Working With Excel Data	

	Working With CSV Data	
	Working With a Database Source	
	Exporting Data	48
5. D	Data Profiling	
	Subject Profile	
	Using the Add to Filter Option From the Profile Subject Page	53
	Using the Show Data Option From the Profile Subject Page	
	Using the Add to Filter Option From the Profile Attribute Page	
	Using the Show Data Filter Option From the Profile Attribute Page	62
6. D	Data Quality Rules	63
	Rules Functionality	64
	Adding Rules	
	Working With Operations	
	Adding Operations From the Rules Panel	
	Adding Multicolumn Operations	
A. N	Aanaging the Windows Service	85
	Stopping and Starting the Windows Service	85
	Changing the Startup Type to Automatic	
B. A	Additional Functionality	91
	Adding Quick Operations from the Data Grid	
	Configuring and Executing Rules	
	Reordering Rules.	
	Reordering Operations	
	Executing Rules and Operations	
	Changing Content Types	
	Resetting Your Session	110

This documentation describes how to install Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition and how to work with data. This documentation is intended for all users that want to profile, standardize, and cleanse data.

How This Manual Is Organized

This manual includes the following chapters:

	Chapter/Appendix	Contents
1	Introducing Omni-Gen™ Personal Edition	Describes Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition and highlights of the product.
2	Installing Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition	Describes the requirements for Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition and how to install Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition on a Windows platform.
3	Navigating the Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition User Interface	Identifies and describes key areas of the Omni- Gen [™] Personal Edition user interface.
4	Working With Data	Describes how to import data from Excel spreadsheets, comma-separated values files (CSV), and database tables.
5	Data Profiling	Describes data profiling, which enables you to examine data from an existing data source or file to collect statistics or summaries about the data.
6	Data Quality Rules	Describes the Data Quality rules and Rules functionality.
A	Managing the Windows Service	Describes how to manage the Windows service that is installed with Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition.
В	Additional Functionality	Describes the additional functions of Omni-Gen [™] Personal Edition Getting Started.

Documentation Conventions

The following table lists and describes the documentation conventions that are used in this manual.

Convention	Description
THIS TYPEFACE Or this typeface	Denotes syntax that you must type exactly as shown.
this typeface	Represents a placeholder (or variable), a cross-reference, or an important term. It may also indicate a button, menu item, or dialog box option that you can click or select.
underscore	Indicates a default setting.
Key + Key	Indicates keys that you must press simultaneously.
8	Indicates two or three choices. Type one of them, not the braces.
	Separates mutually exclusive choices in syntax. Type one of them, not the symbol.
	Indicates that you can enter a parameter multiple times. Type only the parameter, not the ellipsis ().
· ·	Indicates that there are (or could be) intervening or additional commands.

Related Publications

Visit our Technical Documentation Library at *http://documentation.informationbuilders.com*. You can also contact the Publications Order Department at (800) 969-4636.

Customer Support

Do you have questions about this product?

Join the Focal Point community. Focal Point is our online developer center and more than a message board. It is an interactive network of more than 3,000 developers from almost every profession and industry, collaborating on solutions and sharing every tips and techniques. Access Focal Point at *http://forums.informationbuilders.com/eve/forums*.

You can also access support services electronically, 24 hours a day, with InfoResponse Online. InfoResponse Online is accessible through our website, *http:// www.informationbuilders.com*. It connects you to the tracking system and known-problem database at the Information Builders support center. Registered users can open, update, and view the status of cases in the tracking system and read descriptions of reported software issues. New users can register immediately for this service. The technical support section of *http://www.informationbuilders.com* also provides usage techniques, diagnostic tips, and answers to frequently asked questions.

Call Information Builders Customer Support Services (CSS) at (800) 736-6130 or (212) 736-6130. Customer Support Consultants are available Monday through Friday between 8:00 A.M. and 8:00 P.M. EST to address all your questions. Information Builders consultants can also give you general guidance regarding product capabilities. Be prepared to provide your six-digit site code (*xxxx.xx*) when you call.

To learn about the full range of available support services, ask your Information Builders representative about InfoResponse Online, or call (800) 969-INFO.

Help Us to Serve You Better

To help our consultants answer your questions effectively, be prepared to provide specifications and sample files and to answer questions about errors and problems.

The following table lists the environment information that our consultants require.

Platform	
Operating System	
OS Version	
JVM Vendor	
JVM Version	

The following table lists additional questions to help us serve you better.

Request/Question	Error/Problem Details or Information
Provide usage scenarios or summarize the application that produces the problem.	

Request/Question	Error/Problem Details or Information
When did the problem start?	
Can you reproduce this problem consistently?	
Describe the problem.	
Describe the steps to reproduce the problem.	
Specify the error messages.	
Under what circumstance does the problem <i>not</i> occur?	

User Feedback

In an effort to produce effective documentation, the Technical Content Management staff welcomes your opinions regarding this document. Please use the Reader Comments form at the end of this document to communicate your feedback to us or to suggest changes that will support improvements to our documentation. You can also contact us through our website, *http://documentation.informationbuilders.com/connections.asp.*

Thank you, in advance, for your comments.

iWay Software Training and Professional Services

Interested in training? Our Education Department offers a wide variety of training courses for iWay Software and other Information Builders products.

For information on course descriptions, locations, and dates, or to register for classes, visit our website, *http://education.informationbuilders.com*, or call (800) 969-INFO to speak to an Education Representative.

Interested in technical assistance for your implementation? Our Professional Services department provides expert design, systems architecture, implementation, and project management services for all your business integration projects. For information, visit our website, *http://www.informationbuilders.com/consulting*.

Chapter

Introducing Omni-GenTM Personal Edition

Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition is a browser-based, self-service application that enables you to import, profile, inspect, and cleanse data from various data sources in a unified, user-friendly interface. The resulting trusted data can be quickly exported to provide insightful analytics and decision-making, or made easily available for other data integration initiatives and solutions.

In this chapter:

- □ Why Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition?
- ☐ Highlights of Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition

Why Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition?

For most organizations, data is the key to effective operations and analytics. But since digital data growth is over 40 percent per year, it is becoming exceedingly difficult to acquire the resources to keep up. Organizations often need additional developers to import and prepare this data, so workers can use it successfully. Coping with changes in a data environment can slow the process down dramatically.

Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition helps you profile, standardize, and cleanse your own data, without involving developers, so you can immediately get the high-quality data you need.

Highlights of Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition

Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition enables you to:

- **Q**uickly import, understand, and cleanse personal data sets.
- Create cleansing and validation rules without the need for developers.
- Experiment with ways to improve data quality.
- Add multiple data sources from CSV, Excel, and database tables.
- Export individual data sources after cleansing.
- □ Export cleansing rules to Omni-Gen[™] Enterprise Master Data and Data Quality Editions.



Installing Omni-GenTM Personal Edition

This section describes the system-level requirements and system configuration for installing Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition on a Windows platform. It also provides the steps for installing Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

In this chapter:

- System Requirements
- Considerations and Limitations
- □ Installing Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition
- □ Accessing Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition From the Windows Application Menu

System Requirements

The following are the system-level requirements and system configuration for installing Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

- □ 16 GB RAM (Installed Memory) is recommended; 8 GB RAM is minimum.
- 2 GB disk space for the baseline product. In addition, 700 MB of disk space for the installer.
- Oracle JDK Release 8.
- Appropriate JDBC drivers for loading data from data sources. The drivers are required during the configuration of the JDBC data sources.
- Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64). For more information, see Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64) on page 12 under Considerations and Limitations.

Note: The installation process requires access to the internet to obtain the proper license for the product. The installation will access the iwse.ibi.com public host on port 8092. Ensure that you are online during the installation process and that there are no firewall rules in your domain, which may prevent the proper access to the iwse.ibi.com public host.

Considerations and Limitations

This section provides an overview of the considerations to be taken into account while using Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition. You are reminded that this product is designed for personal use and may carry limits for data load, data processing, and other limitations. For more information on the Enterprise Level Omni-Gen[™] Master Data Management and Omni-Gen[™] Data Quality Editions, contact iWay Customer Support.

Note:

- □ Installation into the Program Files directory is not supported. It is recommended that you use any other location of the root drive.
- Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition supports Microsoft Excel data sets (spreadsheets) up to 3 MB. If you need to work with larger data sets, it is recommended that you export your Microsoft Excel data set to CSV format. If you require any additional support with your data sets, contact iWay Customer Support.

Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64)

Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition Release 3.9 and higher requires Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64) to be installed on the target machine. The current Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition installer is not able to automatically install this package. If the target machine does not have this package installed, then you must download and install this package before running the installer. You can download Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64) from the following Microsoft website:

https://www.microsoft.com/en-ca/download/details.aspx?id=13523

Data Source Names

The product currently supports file-based data source names that do not contain special characters. Supported data source names must contain the following characters:

A-Z
a-z
_
_
0-9

The maximum length for a data source name is 35 characters.

SQL Server Non-dbo Schemas

To load data from a table on SQL Server that is outside of the default *dbo* schema, you must have the appropriate permissions configured on SQL Server to access another schema (other than *dbo* schema). This setting is controlled by SQL Server configuration settings for a specific user, and not by Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

Windows Defender

During installation of Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition, you may encounter a message from Windows Defender or similar protection applications to allow access for PostgreSQL server and other Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition services. The following image is a sample that you may encounter from Windows Defender, where you are advised to select the *Allow acc*ess option.



Excel Data Support

Excel data sources can contain many types of data, including formulas, charts, pictures, and others. This release of Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition supports only traditional simple Excel data and does not provide support for formulas. If the data source contains formulas or any other unsupported component, the data cell will be skipped during import, and a corresponding error message will be generated for you to review.

Support for the Datetime Datatype

During the data import process, the Datetime datatype columns may experience a nullification of milliseconds in the Date Time value. The milliseconds value may be turned into .000 when viewing the data in the Data Profiling screen.

Installing Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition

The following procedure describes how to install Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

Procedure: How to Install Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition

1. Double-click the *omnigen-installer-pe-*3.9.2-*Windows-PE*.exe installation file to run the installer.

The InstallAnywhere program opens, as shown in the following image.

InstallAnywher	re	
ع	InstallAnywhere is preparing to install	
	88%	
		Cancel

When the installation is ready to begin, the Introduction window opens, as shown in the following image.

0 Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition	- 🗆 X
	Introduction
 Introduction Accept License Agreement Choose Installation Folder Choose Java Virtual Machine Base Port Number, Install as a Service, Specify Hostname and Domain Pre-Installation Summary Ready To Install Installing Install Complete 	InstallAnywhere will guide you through the installation of Omni-Gen Personal Edition version 3.9.2. It is strongly recommended that you quit all programs before continuing with this installation. Click the 'Next' button to proceed to the next screen. If you want to change something on a previous screen, click the 'Previous' button. You may cancel this installation at any time by clicking the 'Cancel' button.
InstallAnywhere Cancel	Previous Next

2. Click Next.

The Accept License Agreement window opens, as shown in the following image.



3. Read the License Agreement, select *I accept the terms of the License Agreement*, and then click *Next*.

The Choose Installation Folder window opens, as shown in the following image.

06 Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition		□ ×
	Choose Install	lation Folder
 Introduction Accept License Agreement Choose Installation Folder Choose Java Virtual Machine Base Port Number, Install as a Service, Specify Hostname and Domain Pre-Installation Summary 	Please specify the folder which will be the root of this installation. Where would you like to install?	
Ready To Install	C:\omni pe	
 Installing Install Complete 	Restore Default Folder	Choose
InstallAnywhere		
Cancel	Previous	Next

- 4. In the *Where would you like to install* field, specify the location where you want to install the required files, or click *Choose* to browse to the location for the installation.
- 5. Click Next.

The Choose Java Virtual Machine window opens, as shown in the following image.

0 Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition		- 🗆 🗙
		Choose Java Virtual Machine
✓ Introduction	Please Choose a Java 8 VM for Use by the installed	application
 Accept License Agreement 	C:\Program Files\Java\idk1.8.0 121\bin\iava.exe	
Choose Installation Folder		
-> Choose Java Virtual Machine		
 Base Port Number, Install as a Service, 		
Specify Hostname and Domain		
Pre-Installation Summary		
Ready To Install		
Installing		
Install Complete		
	Search Another Location	Choose Java Executable
InstallAnywhere		
Cancel		Previous Next

Note: The product will locate the available and suitable JVM.

- 6. If you want to use a different version, or if the product is not able to locate the JVM, click *Choose Java Executable* to navigate to and select your JVM.
- 7. Click Next.

The Base Port, Install as a Service, Start Omni-Gen window opens, as shown in the following image.

Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition				
	27 <u>-</u>	Base Port, Install as a	Service, Sta	rt Omni-Gen
Introduction Accept License Agreement Choose Installation Folder	Base Port Number 9500			
 Choose Java Virtual Machine Base Port Number, Install as a Service, Specify Hostname and Domain 	Omni-Gen Personal Edition ma	ay be run as a Windows Ser	vice.	
Pre-Installation Summary Ready To Install	To run Omni-Gen Personal Editio	on as a Windows Service, sele	ct Yes below.	
Installing Install Complete	Otherwise, select No below.			
	Do you want to install Omni-Ge Yes	en Personal Edition as a Wi	ndows Servic	e?
	Omni-Gen PE Service name	Omni-Gen PE		
	O No			
	Do you want to start Omni-Ger Yes No	n once the installation is fin	ished?	
InstallAnywhere				
Cancel			Previous	Next

- 8. Provide the installation properties:
 - **Base Port Number.** A block of ports will be allocated to be used by the product, starting with the base port.
 - ❑ Windows Service. Choose whether to install Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition as a Windows Service. It is recommended to select Yes.
 - **Start Omni-Gen once the installation is finished.** Choose whether to start the product automatically once the installation has completed. It is recommended to select Yes.
- 9. Click Next.

The Specify Hostname and Domain window opens, as shown in the following image.

06 Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition	– 🗆 X
	Specify Hostname and Domain
 Introduction Accept License Agreement Choose Installation Folder Choose Java Virtual Machine Base Port Number, Install as a Service, Specify Hostname and Domain 	Enter the Hostname and Domain. If you are using localhost for the connection, there is no need to provide Domain information.
Pre-Installation Summary	Hostname
Ready To Install	localhost
O Installing	
InstallAnywhere	
Cancel	Previous <u>N</u> ext

10. Provide the host name and domain for the system where the product is being installed. You may choose to continue with localhost as an option, which does not require domain knowledge or configuration.

Note: The default host name is the machine on which you are currently installing.

11. Click Next.

06 Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition × Pre-Installation Summary Introduction Please review the following before continuing: Accept License Agreement Choose Installation Folder Product Name: Omni-Gen Personal Edition Choose Java Virtual Machine Base Port Number, Install as a Service, ... Install Folder: Specify Hostname and Domain C:\omni_pe Pre-Installation Summary Ready To Install Shortcut Folder: Installing... C:\Users\jm00143\AppData\Roaming\Microsoft\Windows\Start Menu\Programs\Omni-G Install Complete Product version 3.9.2 Install Path C:\omni_pe Java Home C:\Program Files\Java\jdk1.8.0_121 Port Range 9500 - 9547 < InstallAnywhere Previous Cancel Next

The Pre-Installation Summary window opens, as shown in the following image.

12. Verify that the information is correct, and then click Next.

0 Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition × _ Ready To Install Introduction Accept License Agreement Choose Installation Folder Choose Java Virtual Machine ✓ Base Port Number, Install as a Service, ... Specify Hostname and Domain Pre-Installation Summary ready To Install InstallAnywhere is now ready to install Omni-Gen Personal Edition version 3.9.2 onto your Installing... system at the following location: Install Complete C:\omni_pe The installation may take a few minutes depending on the system. InstallAnywhere Cancel Previous Install

The Ready To Install window opens, as shown in the following image.

13. Click Install.

The installation starts and the product contents will be extracted onto the system. A progressive status displays, as shown in the following image.



Note: The Executing Installation Script extract, shown in the following image, takes the most time as it is responsible for configuring the product repositories, services, and starting the product components.



When the installation is complete. the Install Complete window opens indicating a successful status, as shown in the following image.

06 Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition	
	Install Complete
 Introduction Accept License Agreement Choose Installation Folder Choose Java Virtual Machine Base Port Number, Install as a Service, Specify Hostname and Domain Pre-Installation Summary Ready To Install Installing Install Complete 	Congratulations! Omni-Gen Personal Edition has been successfully installed to: C:\omni_pe The install script finished with return code 0 Press "Done" to quit the installer.
InstallAnywhere Cancel	Previous Done

14. Click Done.

The web interface will be launched automatically, and the Omni-GenTM Personal Edition home page opens. You may see a message that $Omni-Gen^{TM}$ is starting up, as shown in the following image.





Once Omni-Gen[™] has started, the Omni-Gen[™] wizard opens, as shown in the following image.

15. Click Start Exploring to explore the product and proceed with loading your data into the Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

For more information on loading data, see *Working With Data* on page 35.

For more information on the layout of the environment and user interface, see *Navigating the Omni-Gen*[™] *Personal Edition User Interface* on page 29.

Accessing Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition From the Windows Application Menu

The Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition installer provides shortcuts from the Windows application menu that you can use at any time to access the product, as shown in the following image.



Clicking *Omni-Gen PE* will launch the main user interface (workbench) for Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition in your default browser.

Clicking *Omni-Gen Server Console* will launch a console in your default browser that you can use for administration purposes. For example, you can manage (start and stop) internal services that are used by the Omni-Gen[™] server, view system logs, and so on. For more information on using this console, see the *Omni Console User's Guide*.



Navigating the Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition User Interface

This section identifies and describes key areas of the Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition user interface.

The following image shows the layout of the Omni-GenTM Personal Edition user interface when a data source is loaded.

In this example, a comma-separated values (CSV) file named *pe_cust.csv* has been loaded into Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

Omni	Gen Personal Edition									C
al.	Add Data Source Reset Export Project Q =	comp	any_list							Execute rules
=	- company_list ノ 生 回 び pe_cust.cst, 9039 rows, added: 10/11/2018, modified: 10/11/2018	+ Add I	liter							
	batch_id				active s	tatus - All D	ecords - 9039			
	input_source_name				denve_s	LOLUS - MIL	10001013 - 30333			
	customer_sid		Populated	19039		Blank	0		Distinct 2	
	customer_sin		Frequency		Patterns	-	First/Last Vi	alues	Tai	5
	active_status	_								·
	legal_name									
	dba_name			10 most fr	equent values			10 least fr	requent values	
	first_name			Y	_	7267		Y		7267
	middle_name			N		1772		N		1772
	last_name									
	display_name							Records	per page:	100 •
	company_name		hatch id	input s	curto	curto	active	lagal p	dha na	first n
	tax_id		[A-Z]	[A-Z]	[A-Z]	[A-Z]	[A-Z]	[A-Z]	[A-Z]	IIISt_II [A-Z]
	tax_exempt_num	1	1	Sales	123456		Y	Linford		Linford
	soc_sec_num	2	1	MKT	123456		Y			Linford

In this chapter:

- Title Bar
- View Mode
- Menu Bar
- Loaded Data Summary View
- U Workspace Header
- Filter Bar
- Workspace Area

Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition Getting Started Guide

Title Bar

The Title bar displays the product title on the left and provides a link to additional resources (About) on the right, as shown in the following image.

Omni-Gen Personal Edition

View Mode

Clicking the *Profiling* or *Data Grid* icon in the left pane changes how your imported data is viewed and presented in Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition. The Profiling and Data Grid icons are shown in the following image.



The Profiling view mode provides a data profile of your imported data that is currently selected. This view includes metrics that show the current state of the data (for example, subject completeness and completeness by attribute).

The Data Grid view mode provides an actual view of your imported data that is currently selected (as records on a page). Using this view, you can quickly see the relationship of one attribute in your data to the other attributes in the grid. The Data Grid view enables you to create Data Quality Rules and run experiments on the data.

Menu Bar

The menu bar, shown in the following image, provides a set of high-level options that enable you to quickly manage your data in Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.



The set of options, from left to right, includes:

■ Add Data Source. Adds (imports) a new data source into Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition. You can add multiple data sources and toggle between them for analysis.

ത

- □ **Reset.** Removes all imported data sources from Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.
- **Export Project.** Exports the current project from Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition for use in Omni-Gen[™] Master Data and Data Quality Editions.
- Gearch. Searches across all of the data sources that have been imported into Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.
- **□** Sort Data. Sorts the available data sources in Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

Loaded Data Summary View

Shown in the left pane, the Loaded Data Summary View provides a summary of the imported data that is currently selected in Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition, as shown in the following image.

- company_list 🛛 🖉 🖄 🖄
pe_cust.csv, 9039 rows, added: 10/11/2018, modified: 10/11/2018
batch_id
input_source_name
customer_sid
customer_sin
active_status
legal_name
dba_name
first_name
middle_name
last_name
display_name
company_name
tax_id
tax_exempt_num
soc_sec_num

In this example (company_list, which is the header/title), a CSV file named *pe_cust.csv* has been imported. This CSV file, which contains 9039 rows was added on 10/11/2018 and also modified on 10/11/2018. The list of individual values (for example, *batch_id*, *input_source_name*, *customer_sid*, and so on) represent the attributes in this imported data. You can select each attribute to view information (for example, a data profile) about that attribute on a more granular level.

The Loaded Data Summary View also provides a set of options that you can apply to the data that is currently selected, as shown in the following image.



The set of options, from left to right, includes:

- **Rename.** Renames a data source in the system.
- **Reload.** Reloads a data source. This removes the existing data and reloads it from the same source.
- □ **Delete.** Deletes the selected data source from Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.
- **Export.** Exports the selected data source into a selected format (CSV, Excel, or database table).

Workspace Header

The Workspace Header, shown in the following image, provides the name of the data source currently selected (for example, *company_list*) and the *Execute rules* button, which allows you to apply any of the defined data quality rules you have selected against your data source.

company_list

Execute rules

Filter Bar

The Filter bar, shown in the following image, enables you to specify and set a variety of filters to narrow the focus of your data and provide a subset of your data that you can analyze.

+ Add Filter

Workspace Area

Depending on the selected view mode (*Profiling* or *Data Grid*), the workspace area provides all of the data profiling information and data metrics related to the selected data source (as a whole) and/or any specific attribute that you may have selected.

The following example shows information for the *active_status* attribute in the Data Grid view mode.

active_status - All Records - 9039									
Populated 9039 Blank 0 Distinct					Distinct 2				
	Frequency			Patterns First/Last Va			Last Values Tags		
10 most frequent values 10 least frequent value Y 7267 Y Y N 1772 N						equent values	7267 1772		
						Records p	per page:	100 🔻	
≡	batch_id ^[A-Z]	input_s _[A-Z]	custo [A-Z]	custo [A-Z]	active [A-Z]	legal_n ^[A-Z]	dba_na ^[A-Z]	first_n ^[A-Z]	
1	1	Sales	123456		Υ	Linford		Linford	
2	1	МКТ	123456		Y			Linford	

The following example shows the data profile of a selected data source in the Profiling view mode.

	Compare			
₽.				
ata Source Completeness	Total records	Populated recor	Blank records	Blank attribute
69.83%	9039	9039	0	0
ompleteness by attribute				
customer_sid	100%			
customer_sid active_status	100%			
customer_sid active_status legal_name	100% 100% \$0.5%			
customer_sid	100% 100% 50.5% 79.95%			
customer_sid active_status legal_name first_name middle_name	100% 100% §0.5% 79.95% 60.7%			
customer_sid active_status legal_name first_name middle_name last_name	100% 100% \$0.5% 79.95% 60.74% 60.56%			
customer_sid active_status legal_name first_name middle_name last_name display_name	100% 100% 50.5% 79.95% 60.74% 60.56% 70.49%			
customer_sid active_status legal_name first_name middle_name last_name display_name company_name	100% 100% 50.5% 79.95% 60.74% 60.56% 70.49% 51.93%			

After you apply data quality rules to your data in Omni-GenTM Personal Edition, you can quickly compare the profiles of your source data with your current data to analyze the impact of the data quality rules. You can think of this as a *Before* and *After* scenario.



Working With Data

Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition enables you to import data from Excel spreadsheets, comma-separated values file (CSV), and database tables.

In this chapter:

- Working With Excel Data
- Working With CSV Data
- Working With a Database Source
- Exporting Data

Working With Excel Data

The following procedure describes how to load Excel data into Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

Procedure: How to Work With Excel Data

1. To load Excel data, select *Excel file* from the Select Data Source dialog box, as shown in the following image.

Select the type of data source to import:
○ CSV file
• Excel file
O Database table
Back

2. Click Continue.

The Configure Data Source dialog box opens, as shown in the following image.

Configure Data Source

Configure your Excel file before loading it to Omni-Gen.

Select path to Excel file Select	file
🗆 Has Header Row	
Show advanced settings	
Back Load F	ile
3. Click Select File to navigate to the Excel file to load, as shown in the following image.



4. Click Select.

C	onfigur	o Data S	ource
	.onngui	e Data J	Juice
Co	nfigure your Excel fil	e before loading it to C)mni-Gen.
Pat	th to Excel file* 🝞		
C	:/DATA/Projects/Custor	mers/pe_cust.xlsx	Select file
✓	Has Header Row		
Sh	ow advanced settings		
		_	
	Back		Load File

You can also access advanced settings, such as Header settings and Row count, from the *Show advanced settings* link.

6. Click Load File.

pe_cust							Execute rules
+ Add Filter							
Current Data Source Data	Compare						
Data Source Completeness		Total records	Populated reco	rds B	lank records	Blank attributes	
65.36%		9039	9039	C)	1	
ostrujo mpujisoura jume customer jud customer jud active status leguji cume dita jume first_name midde_nume	100% 100% 100% 0% 100% \$0.5% \$0.5% \$1.0% \$0.5% \$0.74% \$0.74%						
Attribute Overview	Populated	Blank	Distinct	М	n Max	Total L/D Patterns	Total W/N Patterns
batch_id [A-Z]	9039	0	1		1 1	1	1
input_source_name (9039	0	3	CR	M Sales	2	1
customer_sid (A-Z)	9039	0	9039	100E3515T3	ZZ-261-652-775-H	3	3
customer sin (A-Z)	0	9039	0			0	0

The data is loaded and displays in Profiling view, as shown in the following image. For more information on profiling, see *Data Profiling* on page 51.

7. To access the Data Quality view for Rules creation and experiments, select the Data Grid view.

I	oe_cu	st														Execute rules
•	Add F	ilter												Rule	25	+ Add rule
		Populated	7227	first_na	ame - All Rec Blank 181	ords - 9039		Distinct 1459						- 4	C first_name Cleanse	:
		ropulated	1221			12		515tillet 1455	,					ø	Capitalize	:
											Records per	page: 10	• 00		· Tag value changeu	
	Ξ	batch_id [A·Z]	input_s [A·Z]	custo [A·Z]	custo [A·Z]	active [A-Z]	legal_n [A·Z]	dba_na [A·Z]	first_n [A·Z]	middle [A·Z]	last_na ^[A·Z]	display [A·Z]	comp [A·Z]		+ Add Operation	
	1	1	Sales	123456		Y	Linford		Linford	Delphine						
	2	1	MKT	123456		Y			Linford	Delphine	Kretsch	Linford				
	3	1	MKT	123456		Y	Linford	Linford		Delphine	Kretsch	Linford	Samp			
	4	1	CRM	BL-141		Y	Linford	Linford	Linf	Delphine	Kretsch	Linford				
	5	1	Sales	409J42		Y			Reming							
	6	1	Sales	123456		Υ			Касеу				Torqu			
	7	1	Sales	123456		Y	Kacey A		Касеу	Ayishah	Dower	Kacey	Torqu			
	8	1	CRM	123456		Y				Ayishah	Dower					
	9	1	Sales	987H77		Y						Kacey				
	10	1	CRM	OY-393		Y	Emmie	Emmie	Emmie	Ramakr		Diesink				
	11	1	Sales	123456		Y	Bruna		Bruna	Tucker	Mccredie	Markin				
	12	1	MKT	123456		N			Bruna		Mccredie	Markin				
	13	1	CRM	123456		Y			Bruna	Tucker		Markin				
	14	1	MKT	123456		Y				Tucker	Mccredie	Markin	Mark			
	15	1	CRM	123456		N			Bruna	Tucker		Markin	Mark			

In the Data Quality section, you can create and execute the rules on your data, as shown in the following image.

Working With CSV Data

The following procedure describes how to load CSV data into Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

Note: The loading of CSV data is currently supported only for standard comma-separated format.

Procedure: How to Work With CSV Data

Note: The Omni-GenTM Personal Edition Trial only supports data for which a comma (,) is the delimiter.

1. To load CSV data, select CSV file from the Add Data source dialog box, as shown in the following image.

Add Data Source	×
Select data source type:	
CSV file	
○ Excel file	
 Database table 	
	Cancel Continue

2. Click Continue.

The Add Data Source dialog box opens, as shown in the following image.



- 3. Click Select file to navigate to the CSV document to load.
- 4. If your file has a Header Row, select *Has Header Row* on the Add Data Source dialog box. You may also access advanced settings from the *Show advanced settings* link.
- 5. Click Load File.

pe_cust							Execute rules
+ Add Filter							
							ŕ
Current Data Source Data	Compare						
Data Source Completene	ss	Total records	Populated rec	ords Blai	nk records	Blank attributes	
65.36%		9039	9039	0		1	
Completeness by attribut	te						
batch_id	100%	i i					
nput_source_name	100%						
customer sin	0%						
active status	100%						
legal_name	50.5%						
dba_name	31.01%						
first_name	79.95%						
middle_name	60.74%						
		· ·					
Attribute Overview							
Attribute	Populated	Blank	Distinct	Min	Max	Total L/D Patterns	Total W/N Patterns
batch_id (A-Z)	9039	0	1	1	1	1	1
input_source_name [9039	0	3	CRM	Sales	2	1
customer_sid (A-2)	9039	0	9039	100E3515T33L	ZZ-261-652-775-H	3	3
customer sin (A-Z)	0	9039	0			0	0 .

The data is loaded and displays in Profiling view, as shown in the following image. For more information on profiling, see *Data Profiling* on page 51.

Working With a Database Source

The following procedure describes how to import data from a database into Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

Procedure: How to Work With a Database Source

1. To import data from a data source, select *Database table* from the Add Data Source dialog box, as shown in the following image.

Add Data Source	×
Select data source type:	
○ CSV file	
○ Excel file	
 Database table 	
	Cancel Continue

2. Click Continue.

The Add Data Source Configuration dialog box opens, as shown in the following image.

Add Data Source	×	
Configure your database table connection:		
Path to JDBC file*		
C:/sqljar/sqljdbc42.jar	Select file	
JDBC Driver*		
com.microsoft.sqlserver.jdbc.SQLServerDriver	•	
JDBC URL*		
jdbc:sqlserver://[HOST]\[INSTANCE]:[PORT];databaseName=[D	B] •	
Username*		
Enter username		
Password		
Enter password		
Table name*		
Enter table name		
User-friendly name 😢		
Type user-friendly name		
Back	Test Connection	

 Click Select file to navigate to and locate the applicable JDBC driver for your data source. Based on the selection of the JDBC driver, and if it is available in its metadata, the JDBC driver and JDBC URL parameters will be populated. 4. Provide the connectivity information to your data source and a table name to load, as shown in the following image.

Add Data Source		×					
Configure your database table connection:							
Path to JDBC file*							
C:/sqljar/sqljdbc42.jar Select f							
JDBC Driver*							
com.microsoft.sqlserver.jdbc.SQLServerDriver	•						
JDBC URL*							
jdbc:sqlserver://localhost:1433;databaseName=company	•						
Username*							
sa							
Password							
Table name*							
company_list							
User-friendly name ?							
company_list							
Back	Test Connection						

5. Click Test Connection.

If the connection is successful, the Load Data option is available, as shown in the following image.

Add Data Source	×
Connection succeeded	×
Path to JDBC file*	
C:/sqljar/sqljdbc42.jar	Select file
JDBC Driver*	
com.microsoft.sqlserver.jdbc.SQLServerDriver	•
JDBC URL*	
jdbc:sqlserver://localhost:1433;databaseName=company	•
Username*	
sa	
Password	
Table name*	
company_list	
User-friendly name ?	
company_list	
Back	Load Data

6. Click Load Data.

+ Add Filter							
Current Data Source Da	ata Compare						
Data Source Complete	eness	Total records	Populated records	Blank re	ecords	Blank attributes	
65.34	5%	9039	9039	0		1	
Completeness by attri batch_ud nput_source_name customer_sin active_status legal_name dba_name first_name midde_name	bute 100% 100% 00% 80.5% 21.01% 79.55% 60.74%						
Attribute Overview	Populated	Blank	Distinct	Min	Max	Total L/D Patterns	Total W/N Patterns
batch_id [A-2]	9039	0	1	1	1	1	1
input_source_name [9039	0	3	CRM	Sales	2	1
customer_sid [A-Z]	9039	0	9039	100E3515T33L	ZZ-261-652-775-H	3	3
customer_sin [A-z]	0	9039	0			0	0

The data is loaded and displays in Profiling view, as shown in the following image.

Exporting Data

Upon completion of the Data Quality operations, you can export the data for external consumption, in file or table format.

Procedure: How to How to Export Data

1. To export a data source, choose the *Export* icon, as shown in the following image.



The Export Data Source dialog box opens, as shown in the following image.



- 2. Select the Export format, for example, *Excel file*.
- 3. Click Continue.

4. Navigate to the location and file to use for the export, as shown in the following image.

Export Data Source	×
Select file directory:	
▼ = C:\	
🕨 🚞 .metadata	
🕨 🚞 CSDsoftware	
🕨 🚞 DATA	
🕨 🚞 Dell	
🧰 Documents and Settings	
🕨 🧰 doitt	
DQS10	
🕨 🧰 File	
🕨 🧰 ilTs	
🕨 🚞 Intel	
🕨 🚞 ism701	
🕨 🚞 ism707	
🕨 🚞 ism8ga	
🕨 🚞 iway802exe	
🕨 🚞 iway802_trunk	
🕨 🧰 Logs	
🕨 🚞 loqate	
i ogpe374	
🕨 🚞 ogpetemp	
🕨 🚞 omnigen	
🕨 🚞 omni_pe	
openrules.decisions	
🕨 🚞 PerfLogs	
🕨 🚞 Program Files	•
File name*	
pe_cust_output	
Back Expo	t //

5. Click Export.

You will receive a message with the status of the export, as shown in the following image.





Data Profiling

Data profiling enables you to examine data from an existing data source or file to collect statistics or summaries about the data.

The Profile Subject and Attribute pages can be displayed in three modes:

- Current
- Source
- Compare

In general, all of the modes display the same page elements, but the Current mode displays the current state of the records that you are currently working with. The Source mode displays the source state of the records and Compare mode displays a comparison of Current and Source records.

In this chapter:

- Subject Profile
- Using the Add to Filter Option From the Profile Subject Page
- Using the Show Data Option From the Profile Subject Page
- Using the Add to Filter Option From the Profile Attribute Page
- Using the Show Data Filter Option From the Profile Attribute Page

Subject Profile

The Subject Completeness bar chart displays the percentage of Subject data completeness.

Total records, Populated records, Blank records, and Blank attributes tiles display the number of records corresponding to the name of the tile (Blank/Populated, and so on).



The Completeness by attribute bar chart displays the percentage of completeness for each attribute. It shows you a visual representation of the subject you are working with and helps identify where the possible data problem might be.

The Attribute Overview table displays attribute data characteristics from the following categories:

Populated, Blank, Distinct, Min, Max, Total Word/Number Patterns and Total Letter/Digit Patters.

Attribute Overview								
Attribute	Populated	Blank	Distinct	Min	Max	Median	Total W/N Patterns	Total L/D Patterns
firstName (x-z)	5996	5	6046	0	999	18097	1	5
middleName (4-2)	5996	5	6046	0	999	18097	1	5
lastName (k.z)	5999	2	6048	0	9997	18097	1	5
dateOfBirth press	6001	0	2	05/22/2017	05/24/2017	05/24/2017		
email (kg)	5999	2	6048	10000	9997	18100	1	5
SSR (4-2)	6000	1	6049	0	9997	18097	1	5
createdRecord [prp	6001	0	917	2017-05-23 07:05:4	2017-05-25 06:33:5	2017-05-25 06:07:0		
bol (rueters)	6001	0	1	true	true	true		

Using the Add to Filter Option From the Profile Subject Page

The Add to Filter functionality allows you to add a filter tag from the bar chart, tile, or grid. The Add to Filter option is present in the context menus which are available by right-clicking on most of the following components: tile, bar chart, and table cell. There is no context menu available for the Blank Attributes tile.

After selecting the *Add to Filter* option, a global filter will be added containing the appropriate criteria.



The following list describes the specifics for adding a filter from the different context menus:

❑ When adding a filter for the Populated records tile or Subject completeness bar chart, the global filter contains every attribute in that subject, and the operator indicates that it is not empty, as shown in the image below. Filter tags will be separated with the OR operand.

al	Customer 3000 records	Customer
	- Customer	fullName is not empty 🛪 🕀
	firstName middleName	Current Data Source Data Compare
	lastName fullName	Subject Completeness Total records
		43.07% 1970
		Completeness by attribute
		firstName 91.60%
		middleName 79.09%
		100% son 97.21%
	bo_code	courtry 97.00% Show Data
		4ge 096
	refField	

❑ You can right-click the Blank records tile and select the *Add to Filter* option. A global filter will be added containing a series of Filter tags for every column of the subject. Each tag will have property = <column name> and operand is *empty*. Filter tags will be separated with the AND operand.

Brothame is empty × () AND *	middefamel.cmpy X () AD * Settlemel.cmpy X () AD *
AND * country 5 empty × 🕀	AND * gender's empty X 🕀 AND * legels empty X 🖶 AND * legels empty X 🖶 AND * levels and the moty X 🖨 AND * levels and the moty X 🕾 AND *
AND * Be, sade is empty X (i)	AND * Greate/Time is enjoy × @ AND * Refferial is enjoy × @

- □ There is no *Add to Filter* option for Total records. Adding that filter makes no sense since it will show all the records in the system, and they are already displayed on the page.
- ❑ You can right-click the *Completeness by Attribute* bar charts and select *Add to Filter*. As a result, the Filter tag will be added to the global filter with property = <column name> and operand *is not empty* (or *is empty*, if subject is empty).

- ❑ You can right-click the Attribute name for a specific column in the Attributes Overview table and select the *Add to Filter* option from the context menu. The filter tag will be added with property = <column name you clicked on>, operand *Equals*, and value = <empty>. You will need to enter values for them.
- ❑ You can right-click the Populated value for a specific column in the Attributes overview table and select the *Add to Filter* option from the context menu. The filter tag will be added with property = <column name of the bar you clicked on> and operand *is not empty*.
- ❑ You can right-click the Blank value for a specific column in the Attributes overview table and select the *Add to Quick Filter* option from the context menu. The filter tag will be added with property = <column name of the bar you clicked on> and operand *is empty*.
- ❑ You can right-click the Min value for a specific column in the Attributes overview table and select the *Add to Quick Filter* option from the context menu. The filter tag will be added with property = <column name of the bar you clicked on>, operand *Equals*, and value = <the min value you clicked on>. The Attribute Overview table will be filtered according to the filter criteria.
- ❑ You can right-click the Max value for a specific column in the Attributes overview table and select the *Add to Quick Filter* option from the context menu. The filter tag will be added with property = <column name of the bar you clicked on>, operand *Equals*, and value = <the max value you clicked on>. The Attribute Overview table will be filtered according to the filter criteria.
- □ There is no *Add to Filter* option for the Distinct, Total W/N Patterns, Total L/D Patterns columns, and the Attribute Overview table header.

Using the Show Data Option From the Profile Subject Page

You can navigate to the Data table and see data according to the selected item in the onscreen filter or global filter data by selecting *Show Data* from the context menu. The presence of an On-Screen filter and global filter on the Data table page depends on the selected bar chart on the Profile page. You can right-click any tile, table cell, or bar chart and select the *Show Data* option, as shown in the following image.



The following list shows how the Show Data option applies to each different component.

❑ For the Populated records tile, the same filter will be set for the Add to Filter option, and the Data table page will open with Populated records. None of the table columns will be selected.

Translame is not empty (DR + indefendance is not empty (DR + interesting) (DR + interest	Is not empty Time is not empty 100 *										
CR * welfweld is not empty at	100 *										
Records per page: 100 *											
Entrollame middle_ lastName fullName son dateOBL country gender age creditRa postCode doub.co bo_code createTL [s-2]	refField (A-2)										
1 06/26/2 1114 1114 1114 1114 0.393 true 2217-06	refReidC										
2 1112 06/26/2 1112 1112 1112 0.98 true 2017-06	reffieldC										
3 418 06/26/2 418 418 418 0.883 true 2017/06	refrieldC										
4 1848 06/26/2 1848 1848 1848 1848 0.434 true 2017/06	refieldC										
5 1846 06/26/2. 1846 1846 1846 1846 0.017 true 2017/06.	reffieldC										
6 1844 06/26/2. 1844 1844 1844 1.844 0.189 true 2017/06	refieldC										
7 294 06/26/2 294 294 294 0.377 true 2017-06	refFieldC										
8 1270 06/26/2 1270 1270 1270 1270 0.618 true 2017-06	reffieldC										
9 1676 06/26/2 1676 1676 1676 1676 0.158 me 2017-06	refrieldC										
10 586 06/26/2 586 586 586 586 0.79 true 2017-06	refFieldC										

- The behavior will be the same for Blank records, but the Data table page will open with Blank records.
- For the Total tile, the Data table page will open with all records shown. There is no Show Data option for the Blank attributes tile.
- □ For the Subject Completeness bar charts, results will be the same as the Populated records tile. None of the table columns will be selected.
- For the Completeness by attribute bar chart:
 - □ If you right-click the bar representing the Populated values, the Data table page for the selected column opens. The Column Profile pane has *Populated* selected.
 - If you right-click the bar part representing the Empty values, then the Data table page for the selected column opens. The Column Profile pane has *Empty* selected. You can rightclick and select *Show Data* from every column on the Attribute Overview table.

For example:

□ **Populated/Blank.** The Data table page opens with Populated/Blank records displayed for the selected column and with the Populated/Blank tab in On-Screen filter selected.

- □ Min column. The Data table page opens with the selected column. The On-Screen Column Profile is switched to the First/Last values tab and the first value in the First tab is selected.
- ❑ **Max column.** The Data table page opens with the selected column. The On-Screen Column Profile is switched to the First/Last values tab and the last value in the Last tab is selected.
- ❑ When you right-click anywhere else in the Attributes overview table row and select *Show Data* from the context menu, the Data table page opens but none of the grid columns will be selected.

Using the Add to Filter Option From the Profile Attribute Page

The *Add to Filter* option can be selected in the Profile/Attribute page from the context menus by right-clicking the tile and bar chart components. After clicking *Add to Filter*, the filter tag will be added to the global filter, as shown in the following image.



The following list describes the results of adding filters from different context menus.

❑ When adding a filter for the Populated records tile or Completeness by Attribute (green bar), the behavior will be the same. The global filter will be added for the selected attribute in the tree and contains the *is not empty* operator, as shown in the following image.

al	Customer 3000 missiok	lustomer / firstName									
	- Customer	Registance is not empty 🗙 🕀									
	Frythame middleName	Current Data Source Data Compare									
		Attribute completeness	Total records	Populated records Blank records							
		107%	1806	1806 0 Add to Filter							
		20 most frequent values	20 least frequent values	Show Data An in a waves							
	alis Buqai	23 C 21 5 21	Aldo 1 Alanyi 1 Alsan 1	A 14 Autyun 1 Abbey 1							

❑ When adding a filter for the Blank records tile or Completeness by Attribute, the global filter is added for the selected attribute in the tree and contains operator *is empty*, as shown in the following image.

al	Customer 2000 records	Customer / firstName						
	- Customer	firstName is empty × ⊕						
	firstName	Current Data Source Data Compare						
	middleName							
		Attribute completeness						
		9% / 1194						
		Add to Hiter						
		20 most frequent values 20 most inequent values						
		No data to display						
	age							

- □ There is no Add to Filter option for Total records and Distinct records tiles.
- ❑ You can also open the context menu by right-clicking either the bars, name of the bars, or the value in the 20 most/least frequent values, 10 first/last values, 20 most/least frequent patterns, or tags.

❑ You can right-click on the 20 most frequent values, 20 least frequent values, 10 first values, and 10 last values charts, and select *Add to Filter*. The filter tag will be added with property = <column name of the bar chart you clicked on>, operand *Equals*, and value = <the value you clicked on>. The attribute page will be filtered according to the filter criteria, as shown in the following image.

al	Customer 3000 records	Customer / firstName								
	- Customer	firstName Equals V X								
	firstName									
	middleName	Current Data Source Data Compare								
		Annalise consideration	Tetal manufa	Based and a						
		Attribute completeness	local records	Populated P						
		100%	9	9						
		20 most frequent values	20 least frequent values							
			Y.	9						
		Add to Filter								
		20 most frequent patterns	an result frequent patterns							

❑ When you right-click the L/D, L1/D1, W/N bar charts pattern and select Add to Filter, the filter tag will be added with property = <column name of the bar chart you clicked on>, operand Like, and value = <the value you clicked on transformed to RegEx format>. The Attribute page will be filtered according to the filter criteria, as shown in the following image.



❑ You can select *Add to Filter* for the Tags section, and select either the Distinct or Individual tab. The filter tag will be added with property = <column name of the bar chart you clicked on>, operand *Tagged with*, and value = <tag label>. The Attribute page will be filtered according to the filter criteria, as shown in the following image.



There is a delimiter line between each of the bar charts for each bar chart section.

Once a filter is added, the Attribute page will be filtered according to the filter criteria.

Using the Show Data Filter Option From the Profile Attribute Page

You can navigate to the Data table and see data according to the selected item in the filter or global filter data by selecting the *Show Data* from the context menu. The presence of a filter and global filter on the Data table page depends on the selected bar chart on the Profile page.

You can right-click on any tile, table cell, or bar chart and select *Show Data*, as shown in the following image.



Chapter 6

Data Quality Rules

If you identify problems or issues with the data and wish to change it, you can use the Rules functionality.

The Rules functionality allows you to edit, mark, and remove data from the interface without using the Data Quality Server.

It is also used to work with data records (update/remove) by creating data quality rules (Cleansing).

In this chapter:

- Rules Functionality
- Adding Rules
- Working With Operations
- Adding Operations From the Rules Panel
- Adding Multicolumn Operations

Rules Functionality

The Rules functionality is represented with the Rules panel and the Execution process, as shown in the following image.



The Rules panel is available for the selected column in the Data table and is collapsed, by default. The Rules panel displays a list of rules associated with the selected column. The Rules are collapsed, by default, when navigating to the Rules panel after working with filters or sorting.

If you are adding a new rule, it is added in the expanded state, as shown in the following image.



If the column is not selected, the corresponding information is displayed in the Rules panel, as shown in the following image.

Renad	fatos Advisionatos Wardsonch												Apre, Ap	Data Naporete	ne, group gry 1, System Administrated — Legend	0.
al	Castomer All-Insenti	Custor	ner													Execute rules
	- Castomer	• **	(Filler												Rules	* Add rule
												Records	per page:	15 V		
		1.2	Designed	and the	1.00			Date: N	-	Constant	diam'r.		distant.	Condition		
		-	(4.0)	(4.0)	(12)	(4-2)	25	Dep-man-	14.0	14-1	[1.1]	(mumPariar)	lon	128		
			1 58	58	58	58	58	05/08/2	58	58	58	true	2017-0	58		
			2 840	840	840	840	840	05/08/2	840	840	840	true	2017-0	840		
			5 1530	1530	1530	1530	1530	05/06/2	1530	1530	1530	true	2017-0	1530		
			4 232	232	232	232	232	05/06/2	232	232	332	true	2017-0	232		
			5 1608	1608	1608	1608	1608	05/08/2	1628	1608	1908	true	2017-0	1608		
			6 914	314	914	914	974	05/08/2	954	914	914	true	2017-0	914		
			P 916	916	316	976	976	05/08/2	916	916	916	true	2017-0	916		
			\$ 1342	1342	1042	1042	1942	05/06/2	1942	1542	1342	true	2017-0	1942	i 🕅	
		P	9 1120	1139	1730	1730	1720	05/06/2	1720	1720	1720	true	2017-0	1120		
		1.1	0 5494	5494	1494	1494	1494	05/08/2	1494	1494	3494	true	2017-0	5494	working with its rules	
		1.1	1 942	942	962	562	562	05/08/2	942	962	942	1748	2017-0	942		
		1	2 636	436	436	436	636	05/08/2	626	626	626	true	2017-0	636		
		1.1	5 642	642	642	642	642	05/06/2	642	642	642	true	2017-0	642		
	- Contactivithod	1.1	4 3498	1498	1498	1498	1498	05/06/2	1498	3408	1458	true	2017-0	5498		
		1.1	5 1006	1066	1066	1006	1006	05/08/2	1066	1066	1066	true	2017-0	1006		
	Porson Air data marketin	110	5 of 8,010								Acc. In	ness Page I	of \$34 New	t ter		
O																

If there are no rules associated with the selected column, the corresponding information displays, as shown in the following image.



Adding Rules

To add a new rule, select the column, expand the Rules panel and click *Add rule*. A new rule is created with a predefined name, for example, *Column name> Cleanse* [number representing the last existing rule with this name +1], as shown in the following image.

 Ogender Cleanse 	2	:
Created by nkulyk on 20	17-07-17 10:07:21:784 AM	
There are	no operations in this	s rule
	+ Add operation	
	OR	
	227 1227 225	

gender Clea	anse 2 - Edit		A A A CARLINDA	
gender Cle	eanse 2			_
Rule descrip	tion goes here			
				0/80
			Cancel	ave

The Rule description is empty, by default, as shown in the following image.

You can edit the Rule name and description, as shown in the following image. A simple validation is added to the rule edit mode.

- 🗢 firstName Clean	se :
Created by nkulyk on 201	Edit name and description
	효 Delete
There are r	no operations in this rule
	+ Add operation
	OR
+ Ado	d complex operation

You can also delete rules. A confirmation message appears when you click *Delete*, as shown in the following image.



The rule inherits the global filter of the data set that is added at the moment of adding the rule, as shown in the following image.

ustom	er / middleNa	τie										sensite rate
***	r Equit Female	DE * genneri		anteoliteren	Second Store 1971	9 # #P#rd				Rule		Add rule
AND	* deteOffice	Len Par o pijužy	etintigent × 🕀	AND * Assessy	tyun CA 🛪 🕀					•	outoner, cleanse, name name arabita in ni name	
	Populated 1718	Ba	nk 1285	0-51mil 47						1	Dearse, added, from, OrmiDesigner	
							Record	b per page 10	(*)	+ 1	3 middleName Cleanse	1
Ξ	firstName (42)	middeName (+2)	lastName (4-2)	fullName (47)	889 (4-2)	dateOfflirth	country (4-2)	gender (4-2)			gender mysti Fernie ir gender mysti 8 and	
1	NEE	0	Doeplie -	Nita O Doeplie	156210254	15/07/2000	CA .	F.			deexOfBirth grader Train 1013/1979 and deexOfBirth Intelligence 03/12/2017 and	
. 2	Evelyne	LOYCE	kattherg	Evelyne Loys	355017266	06/09/1983	CA.	1			soundry music CA	
3	Sheryl	c	Andrachala	Sheryl C And .	516419602	11/05/1070	CA	Fermate		1	A demonstration	-
14	Tenory	A/.	Belat	Briony A Detail	263	10/28/2002	CK.	F.	3		Tag Value changed	1.5
5	Dormy	м	Renn	Dorthy M Ke.	644203892	12/04/1981	CA.	F.		1	• Add operation	
6	Artin	Mennud.	Steven	Arts Mehrmu	68975571	05/01/2001	CA	Female				

You can click Add operation to add a new operation, as shown in the following image.

Created on 2019-04-03 02:27:51:511 PM	:						
flattened/phone_number							
There are no operations in this rule							
+ Add Operation							
OR							
+ Add Multi-Column Operation							

Once you select the rule or operation, it becomes highlighted. The new rule is selected as an uncommitted (orange color) icon, as well as a newly added operation, as shown in the following image.


You can expand the rule to view a list of operations you can choose from to add to the rule, as shown in the following image.





Working With Operations

The Operation is a single action that allows you to customize the way you view data.

For example, the Uppercase operation turns all data in the selected column into Uppercase characters.

Each operation updates data for a selected column in a certain way defined by options (for example, inputs, values, radio buttons, check boxes, and so on) which are set in corresponding XML files and help to distinguish and update data, as shown in the following image.

Cle	anse SSN	
For	nat DDD-DD-DDDD	
V I	emove invalid values? 2	
Тад	5	
	SSN not a number	¥
	SSN_NOT_A_NUMBER	
	3	X Delete tag
	dd tag	

For example, the *Cleanse* SSN operation contains the following options:

- 1. **Format.** Indicates what format of data should appear after an operation is applied (nine digits will be displayed in a specified way).
- 2. **Remove invalid values?** Select this check box if you want to remove data that does not satisfy a specified format (less or more than nine digits, characters, or special symbols).
- 3. Tags. Added to data and characterizes it according to the set tag value.

The operation content corresponds to the column data type you select. You can set the parameters for any operation you choose. You can edit the following parameter types:

- 1. Behaviour parameters. What the operation has to execute.
- 2. Tags. Signs off the execution of an operation.
- 3. **Output format.** A set of possible output format options for the content type.

There are two ways to add an operation: add as quick operation from the table context menu and add from the rule. The Add Quick Operation is shown in the following image.

dateOfBirth [MM/dd/yyyy]	email ^[A-Z]	ssn [A-Z]
07/09/2017	0	0
07/09/2017 Add to Filter	10	10
07/09/201 Add Quick O	peration Remove v	alue
	perdelon	
07/09/2017	1000	1000
07/09/2017 07/09/2017	1005	1000

There are also two types of operations depending on the affected areas: Simple and Multicolumn.

Simple operations are related to one Attribute and after execution of the rule will affect data only for the selected attribute.

		Recor	rds per page:	100 ~
≡	firstNa [A·Z]	middle [A·Z]	lastNa [A-Z]	fullNa [A·Z]
1	F	Tarina	Brodell	F Tarin
2		N	Moores	N Moor
3	Jared	R	Oblinski	Jared R
4	Andria	A	Mallin	Andria
5	Herb		Byrant	Herb B
6	Randy	с	Kwasny	Randy
7	Cearra	к	Shau	Cearra
8	Artur	E	Padley	Artur E
9	Kelleigh	R	Omlin	Kelleig
10			Defrance	Defrance
11	Lujayn	Р	Pellish	Lujayn
12	E	Enola	Rudden	E Enola
13	Carroll	L	Stetzen	Carroll

Mulitcolumn operations involve several attributes and work with data from those attributes that are listed in the inputs and outputs of the operations, as shown in the following image.

The rule that contains a mulitcolumn operation will be created for each involved attribute, as shown in the following image.

		Recor	ds per page	100 ~		Created on 2017-07-17 09:17:58 366 AM
≡	firstNa [A-2]	middle [A-Z]	lastNa [A-2]	fullNa [A-Z]		 c123 Created on 2017-07-17 11:48-09:009 AM
1	F	Tarina	Brodell	F Tarin	i i	
2		N	Moores	N Moor		- O firstName Cleanse
3	Jared	R	Oblinski	Jared R		Last updated by Super_A on 2017-07-17 12:57:49:850 PM
4	Andria	A	Mallin	Andria		O 📥 Concatenate
5	Herb		Byrant	Herb B		
6	Randy	С	Kwasny	Randy		
7	Cearra	к	Shau	Cearra		

You can hover your cursor over the operation and see the name, parameters, and tags inside the corresponding tooltip, as shown in the following image.

						fulfume Cleance
	- Of Milliame Cleanse	1		O fullName Ocanoe Oranization (control of the statements)	1	O Additioner Cleanse Interception (1999) 1999 1999 1999 1999
Value changed	A Remove value Ø Tag Value changed		Remove Andria A Malin	A Remove value		G ≜ Remove value i ⊕ Tag Value changed
	* Add specialize			* Add approximation		+ Add operation

You can edit and delete any operation, as shown in the following image.

- ;	Created by Super_A on 2017-0	7-17 01:02:08:659 PM	:
Q	📥 Remove value 🤗 Tag Value char	🖉 Edit	:
	+ Add operation	団 Delete	

Only one operation at a time can be opened in Edit mode. If you try to open another operation or do another action while the operation is opened, you will be asked to save changes first, as shown in the following image.

	Contract of the second s	Distance of	
Unsaved o	lata		
All unsaved	data will be lost. Would you	u like to proceed?	
			Cancel OK
_			

Adding Operations From the Rules Panel

In order to add a rule from Rules panel, select either the *Add operation* or *Add multicolumn operation* buttons.

Currently, there are two groups (Cleanse and Validate), as shown in the following image.

New Operation	Groups
CLEANSE	VALIDATE
A-a	0 05
	Subgroups

The number of subgroups can be different. Groups and subgroups are configured in the corresponding XML file of the operation in a specific folder where the Omni-Gen[™] system is installed.

If the number of operations is more than five, then the operations display in a drop-down list, as shown in the following image.

✓ Ø Cre	project_id Cleanse eated by nkulyk on 2017-05-11 11:	:02:50:817 am	:
	New Operation		
	CLEANSE	VALIDATE	
	C,		
			~
	Validate COMPANY LEGAL	FORM	
	Validate COUNTRY		
	Validate Email		- F
	Validate FIRST name		
	Validate LAST name		
	Validate PHONE		
	Validate SSN		
	Validate USA state		

The operation content corresponds to the column data type you select. You can set the parameters for any operation you choose.

You can edit the following parameter types, as shown in the following image.

Behaviour parameters. What the operation has to execute.

Tags. Annotate positive or negative aspects of your data.

Output format. A set of possible output format options for the content type.

Clea	nsel	DATE	
Forn	nat	уууу-MM-dd	3
Crde	emov er of MD.	e invalid values? date parts in input d	1 iata is:
OM	DY		
Tags		2	
	Тар	g DATE invalid	
	DAT	E_INVALID	
			× Delete ta
	Таз	g DATE did not found	
	DAT	E_DID_NOT_FOUND	
			× Delete ta
+ Ac	d tar		

Changes that were made with the operation/rule are marked with an uncommitted icon.

Adding Multicolumn Operations

Multicolumn operations affect more than one input attribute (for example, First name, Middle name, and Last name). This type of operation can be added to every involved attribute, as well as attributes that have been created, as shown in the following image.

		Recor	ds per page:	100 ~		
=	firstNa [A·Z]	lastNa [A·Z]	fullNa [A·Z]	ssn [A·Z]	O firstName Cleanse 1 Last updated by Super_A on 2017-07-18 09:31:33:167 AM	
1		Fechtig	CleveG	353085		
2		Widem	L	451919	Parse	
3		Padley	ArturE	312305	Input	
4		Zand	Augusti	755026	fuliName	-
5		Moling	Baltasa	9917681	Output 1	
6		Prys	DarrylD		firstName	1
7				564941	Output 2	
8		Hadcock	JitendraD	377349	middleName	
9		Olkowski	TollyGr	345042	Delimiter	
10		Frichette	WileyM	545987		
11		Riffel	LailaV	000202		
12		Lindsley	PrakashE	364316	Cancel	e

Operations can be edited from every involved attribute.

Only one multicolumn operation can be added to one rule.

Multicolumn operations cannot be added to the rules with standard operations, as shown in the following image. Operations can contain up to three sections:

- 1. Behaviour parameters. What the operation has to execute.
- 2. Tags. Annotate positive or negative aspects of your data.

3. Mapping.

Parse		
Input	3	_
fullName		~
Output 1		_
firstName		~
Output 2		
middleName		~
Delimiter	1	

Note: By default, all input fields are unmapped.

Standard labels can be mapped for the input attributes operation with particular examples for the data model (for example, First name = Name1, Middle name = Name2, Last name = Name3). You can add fields only with the same data type selected. Any field can stay unmapped.

You can add as many simple operations as needed, but only one multi-column operation can be added.

The following image shows the three multi-column operations available in Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition:

Concatenate

Parse Person Name

Parse

Concatenate	Parse Person Name	Parse	
Input 1	Format	Input	
Unmapped	•	Unmapped	*
input 2	First Middle Last	Output 1	
Unmapped	* Full name	Unmapped	*
Output	Unmapped	Output 2	
Unmapped	* First name	Unmapped	
a mining prov	Unmapped	• Defension	
Delimiter	Middle name	Delimiter	
	Unmapped	T	
t Canada and a second	Last name	t Operations Carrel	520
• operations	Unmapped	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
	Suffix		
	Unmapped	*	
	Tide		
	Unmapped	•	
	Tags		
	Name Updated		
	NAME LIPDATED		
	NAME_OF DATED		
	× Delete	tag	
	+ Add tag		



Managing the Windows Service

This section describes how to manage the Windows service that is installed with Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition.

In this appendix:

- Stopping and Starting the Windows Service
- Changing the Startup Type to Automatic

Stopping and Starting the Windows Service

During the installation of Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition, you are prompted to install the product as a Windows service, as shown in the following image.

Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition	
	Base Port, Install as a Service, Start Omni-Gen
 ✓ Introduction ✓ Accept License Agreement ✓ Choose Installation Folder ✓ Choose Java Virtual Machine → Base Port Number, Install as a Service, 	Base Port Number 9500
Specify Hostname and Domain Pre-installation Summary Ready To Install Installing Installing	To run Omni-Gen Personal Edition as a Windows Service, select Yes below. Otherwise, select No below.
mister comprete	Do you want to Install Omni-Gen Personal Edition as a Windows Service? (a) Yes Omni-Gen PE Service name Omni-Gen PE
	O No
	Do you want to start Omni-Gen once the installation is finished? Yes No
InstallAnywhere	
Cancel	Previous Next

By default, the Windows service is labeled *Omni-Gen PE*, which is also set to start once the installation has completed.

You can manage this service from the Windows Services utility (Administration Tools), which is shown in the following image.

Q Services					- 🗆	×
File Action View Help						
← → □	i 🕨 🖬 🖬 🕩					
Services (Local)	Services (Local)					
	Omni-Gen PE	Name	Status	Startup Type	Log On As	^
	Stop the service Pause the service <u>Restart</u> the service	Network List Ser Network Locatio Network Store In Network Store In Network Store In Office Source En Office Source En	Running Running Running Running	Manual Automatic Manual (Trigge Automatic Automatic Manual Automatic (Tri	Local Service Network Service Local System Local Service Network Service Local System Local System	
		Q OpenSSH Authe Optimize drives Parental Controls Payments and N Peer Name Reso Peer Networking	Kunning	Disabled Manual Manual Manual (Trigge Manual Manual	Local System Local System Local System Local Service Local Service Local Service	~
	Extended Standard					

To stop the *Omni-Gen PE* service at any point, right-click the service and select *Stop* from the context menu, as shown in the following image.

Uttline Files	Running	Automatic (Tri	Local System
😳 Omni-Gen PE	Running	Manual	Local System
OpenSSH Authe Optimize drives Parental Controls Payments and N Peer Name Reso Peer Networking Peer Networking Performance Co Performance Lo Networking Performance Lo	Running Si P R R R R P H	Manual tart top ause esume estart II Tasks > efresh roperties	Local System Local System Local System Local Service Local Service Local Service Local Service Local Service Local Service

To start the *Omni-Gen PE* service, right-click the service and select *Start* from the context menu, as shown in the following image.

🔍 Offline Files	Running	Automatic (Tri	Local System
Omni-Gen PE		Automatic	Local System
OpenSSH /	Start	bled	Local System
🔍 Optimize d	Stop	ual	Local System
🔍 Parental Co	Pause	ual	Local System
🔍 Payments i	Resume	ual (Trigge	Local Service
🎑 Peer Name	Destant	ual	Local Service
🔍 Peer Netwo	Kestart	ual	Local Service
🏟 Peer Netwo	All Tasks	> ual	Local Service
🎑 Performan		ual	Local Service
🎑 Performan	Refresh	ual	Local Service
🔍 Phone Serv	Properties	ual (Trigge	Local Service
🔍 Plug and P		ual	Local System
PNRP Mac	Help	ual	Local Service
🔍 Portable Device		Manual (Trigge	Local System

Changing the Startup Type to Automatic

The startup type for the *Omni-Gen PE* Windows service is set to *Manual* by default, as shown in the following image.

Name	Status	Startup Type	Log On As
Network List Ser	Running	Manual	Local Service
Network Locatio	Running	Automatic	Network Service
🔍 Network Setup S		Manual (Trigge	Local System
🔍 Network Store In	Running	Automatic	Local Service
🎑 NTRU TSS v1.2.1		Automatic	Network Service
Office Source En		Manual	Local System
🖏 Offline Files	Running	Automatic (Tri	Local System
🍓 Omni-Gen PE	Running	Manual	Local System
OpenSSH Authe		Disabled	Local System
Optimize drives		Manual	Local System

This means that if you were to restart (reboot) your system, $Omni-Gen^{TM}$ Personal Edition will not be started automatically. As a result, it is recommended to set the startup type for the *Omni-Gen PE* service to *Automatic*. To do so, right-click the *Omni-Gen PE* service and select *Properties* from the context menu, as shown in the following image.

Offline Files	Running	Automatic (T	ri Local System
🍓 Omni-Gen PE	Running	Manual	Local System
🔍 OpenSSH Authe		Disable	Start
🎑 Optimize drives		Manual	Stop
Rarental Controls		Manual	Pause
Rayments and N		Manual	Resume
Reer Name Reso		Manual	Destant
Reer Networking		Manual	Kestart
Reer Networking		Manual	All Tasks >
Performance Co		Manual	D ()
Performance Lo		Manual	Refresh
Rhone Service		Manual	Properties
Plug and Play	Running	Manual	11-1-
RNRP Machine		Manual	нер

)mni-Ge	n PE Pro	perties (Loo	cal Computer)	
General	Log On	Recovery	Dependencies	
Service	name:	Omni-Gen	PE	
Display	name:	Omni-Gen	PE	
Descript	tion:			< >
Path to C:\omni	executabl i_pe∖omni	e: gen\scripts\	nssm∖nssm64.exe	
Startup	type:	Automatic Automatic Automatic Manual Disabled	: (Delayed Start)	Ň
Service	status:	Norming		
S	Start	Stop	Pause Resume	
You car from her Start pa	n specify t re. arameters:	he start para	ameters that apply when you start the servic	e
			OK Cancel Ap	oly

The Omni-Gen PE Properties dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

Select Automatic from the Startup type drop-down list, click Apply, and then OK.

The startup type for the *Omni-Gen PE* service is now set to *Automatic*, as shown in the following image.

Name	Status	Startup Type	Log On As
Office Source En		Manual	Local System
Offline Files	Running	Automatic (Tri	Local System
🎇 Omni-Gen PE	Running	Automatic	Local System
OpenSSH Authe		Disabled	Local System

Now, if you were to restart (reboot) your system, $Omni-Gen^{TM}$ Personal Edition will also be started automatically.



Additional Functionality

This appendix describes the additional functions of Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition Getting Started.

In this appendix:

- Adding Quick Operations from the Data Grid
- Configuring and Executing Rules
- Changing Content Types
- Resetting Your Session

Adding Quick Operations from the Data Grid

This section describes how to add quick operations from the data grid.

You can add basic operations from the data grid value using the context menu, as shown in the following image.

≡	firstName [A-Z]	middleName ^[A-Z]	lastName [A-Z]	dateOfBirth [MM/dd/yyyy]	email [A-Z]	ssn [A-Z]	createdRecord [yyyy-MM-dd hh:	bol [true/false]
1				05/22/2017	2847	2847	2017-05-23 0	true
2				05/22/2017	1572	1572	2017-05-23 0	true
3				0 Add to Filter		2901	2017-05-23 0	true
4				0 Add Quick Op	peration • Re	emove value	7-05-23 0	true
5				05/22/2017	2907	2907	2017-05-23 0	true

The behavior of adding operations is the same as for the Rules panel.

After selecting *Add Quick Operation*, the option Rules panel expands, and the operation is added. The following list describes several ways of how quick operations are added to a new or existing rule.

❑ The rule is not present in the Rules panel or there are only external rules present. A new operation will be added to a new rule. In addition to an empty description, the system automatically generates a default name, for example:

<Column name> Cleanse [number representing the last existing rule with this name + 1]

The rule will inherit the Global Filter of the data set that you used at the moment of adding an operation, and the rule is automatically selected and highlighted.

- **I** The rule is present in the Rules panel.
 - □ If the rule is selected, and if the rule's filter matches the global filter, then the operation will be added to the latest and selected rule. However, if it doesn't match the global filter, then the latest rule in the rules panel will be verified and the operation will be added to the new rule.
 - □ If the rule is not selected, then the latest rule in the rules panel will be verified. If the latest rule's filter matches the global filter, then the operation will be added to the latest rule. If the latest rule's filter doesn't match the global filter, then the operation will be added to the new rule.

You can add as many quick operations as you wish. Added operations and rules are marked as uncommitted.

Configuring and Executing Rules

If the added rules are not executed, then data will not be changed.

Click *Execute rules* to apply all changes. It is located at the top of every Personal Edition page, as shown in the following image.

Omni	-Gen Personal Edition											
.al	Add Data Source Reset Export Project Q 🚍	_	Customer					Execute	rules			
	マ Customer アレン 前 に Customer.xlsx, 10 rows, added: 10/03/2018, modified: 10/03/20	1	Add Fi	lter								
	firstName					firstN	ame - All Re	cords - 10				
	middleName					11 5 4 4		0103-10				
	lastName			Populate	d 10		Blank 0			Distinct 10		
	fullName	L 1					•					
	ZIP								Pecord	s per page:	100 .	
	Age								Record	is per page.	100	
	Salary		\equiv	firstNa [A-Z]	middle [A-Z]	lastNa [A-Z]	fullNa [A·Z]	ZIP [123]	Age [123]	Salary [123]	Contac [MM/dd/y	
	ContactDate		1	Xavier	D.	Childress	Xavier	7287.233	33	98472	01/31/2	G

Execute rules		
	There are no rules to execute	

A dialog appears with all rules that can be executed. If there are no rules to execute, the following image appears.

E.

After executing a rule, all created rules will be processed, but only those which were modified will be displayed in the Execute rules dialog, as shown in the following image.

Execute rules
email Cleanse Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-05-25 10:29:19:783 AM
ssn Cleanse Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-05-25 10:29:31:061 AM
createdRecord Cleanse Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-05-25 10:29:40:737 AM
createdRecord Cleanse 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-05-25 10:30:24:242 AM createdRecord equals 2017-05-23 07:05 and bol equals true
Cancel

All added rules including previously created and processed rules will appear in the Execute rules dialog. The Execute rule dialog informs you of when an executed rules affect data.

Click *Execute* to start the execution process.

email Clean Adding rules to this column is unavailable 00 because rule is being processed Distinct 2998 cleanse_customer2 Records per page: 100 🔻 dateOfBirth createdRec... bol reference_... email ssn O email Cleanse [yyyy-MM-dd h... [true/faise] [MM/dd/yyyy] [A-Z] [A-Z] 05/28/2017 1416 1416 2017-05-29... true reference_fi... 05/28/2017 945 945 2017-05-29... true reference_fi... 05/28/2017 -05-29... true reference_fi... Add to Filter 05/28/2017 2017-05-29... true reference_fi... 📥 Remove value 201 -05-29... true 05/28/2017 reference_fi... Tag Value changed 05/28/2017 477 477 2017-05-29... true reference fi... 05/28/2017 1422 1422 2017-05-29 true reference fi 2931 reference fi... 05/28/2017 2931 2017-05-29... true

Once processing has started, the rule panel for selected columns or for columns involved in multi-column operations are blocked until the rule has finished processing. You will also not be able to add quick operations for selected columns, as shown in the following image.

A notification will appear if a panel is blocked. You can work with other columns and rules during the execution process, and you can create rules for columns that are not involved. However, new rules cannot be execute until processing of the previous rules are completed.

The Rule processing indicator appears in the bread crumbs area during the execution process.

If only one rule is processed, then its name will appear instead.

There are no limitations for the quantity of rules that can run in the background at the same time. If many rules are processed simultaneously, then the Rules processing indicator will contain all rules, which are collapsed by default. You can expand it to see the detailed information about which rules are processed, as shown in the following image.



When the process is complete, a notification appears that a change was completed in the notification area, and the Rules panel becomes available, as shown in the following image.

		🌀 Rules execu	tion completed
		Rules	+ Add rule
7 RULES WERE SUCCESSFULLY DECUTED "lastName Cleanse" "lastName Cleanse 1"	×	Adding rules to this column is unavail because rule is being processed	able
"lastName Cleanse 2" "lastName Cleanse 3" "fullName Cleanse"	: 100 •	O lastName Cleanse Last updated by on 2018-10-04 01:34:05:998 PM	:
ZIP Cleanse *ContactDate Cleanse* 2	dobDate byyy-MM-dd 1991-10	O lastName Cleanse 1 Created by on 2018-10-03 06:21:07:486 PM	

You cannot cancel or revert rules during processing.

Reordering Rules

Reordering rules or operations allows you to change their positions in order to execute them in another sequence.

To move the rule to another section, drag and drop the rule to the section you wish. An icon appears for the rule that you are dragging, as shown in the following image.



Rules can be moved to any location of the Rules panel except for external rules where they are always the first on top.

					Rules	+ Add rule
			→ ssnQe	anse 2	ssn Cleanse 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-07-20 12:29:50:374 PM	:
		Record	is per page:	100 T	son Cleanse Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-07-17 09:18:36:062.AM	:
bol_new [true/false]	doub_n [123]	int_new [123]	floa_new [123]	ref_sta ^[A-Z]	firstName Cleanse 2 Last undefind by plotted b	:
true true	0.88	938 1598	938 1598	ref_stat ref_stat	Las operado y majo en 2017-07-2017-05-2019 en	
	F	irst Previous	Page 1 of 1	Next Last	Son creatise_acuted from Workbench added from Workbench Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-07-20 11:43:43:867 AM	:

Rules cannot be dropped outside of the Rule panel, but can be expanded and collapsed, as shown in the following image.

Reordering rules with simple operations will not affect the Rules list for other columns since simple operations are related to single attributes. However, when rules contain multicolumn operations that are related to several attributes, reordering multicolumn rules will impact the order of rules of those attributes.

When reordering multicolumn rules containing multi-column operations, you must remember the following principles:

- Rules containing multicolumn operations are moved below the rule with simple operations. It will not affect the position of the rule in other columns.
- Rules containing multicolumn operations are moved below the rule with complex operations and will affect the position of the rule in other columns.
- Rules containing multicolumn operations are moved below the rule with multicolumn operations and will affect the position of the rule in other columns.

Rules for firstName attribute	Rules for lastName attribute	Rules for fullName attribute
customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 00-18-02:590 PM	customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09-18.02.590 PM	Simple 0 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59:54:310 AM
Complex 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59:16:649 AM	O Simple 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:57:20:123 AM	customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09:18.02:590 PM
Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:56:40:872 AM	Complex 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59-16:649 AM	Complex 2 List updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:56-40:872 AM
C Simple 3 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59-25:915 AM	• O Simple 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-06-10 11:58:15:338 AM	Complex 3
	Complex 2 Last updated by nikulyk on 2017-08-10 11:56:40:872.AM	:
	Complex 3 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58:58:267 AM	:

The following image shows three attributes prior to being reordered.

Example 1

In this example, in the firstName attribute column, the Complex 2 rule (containing a complex operation) is dragged to the bottom, below Simple 3 (containing a simple operation), as shown in the following image.

Rules for firstName attribute	Rules for lastName attribute	Rules for fullName attribute
customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09-18 02:590 PM	customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-03 09:18:02:900 PM	Simple 0 Last updated by nikulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59:54:310 AM
Complex 1 Last updated by nitudy: on 2017-08-10 1159-16.649 AM	G Simple 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:57:20:123 AM	customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09-18.02.590 PM
O Simple 3 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59-25-915 AM	Complex 1 Last updated by nikulyk on 2017-08-10 11.59:16.649 AM	Complex 2
Complex 2	Simple 2 List updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58-15:338 AM	Complex 3
	Complex 2 Last updated by rikulyk on 2017-06-10 11:56:40:872 AM	
	Complex 3 Last updated by nikulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58:58:267 AM	:

Rules for firstName attribute	Rules for lastName attribute	Rules for fullName attribute
customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09:18:02:590 PM	customer_cleanse_name created on 2017-05-05 09:18:02:590 PM	Simple 0 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59:54:310 AM
Complex 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 12:45:36:095 PM	C Simple 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:57:20:123 AM	customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09:18:02:590 PM
C Simple 3 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 12-54-56-977 PM	O Complex 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59:16:649 AM	Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:56:40:872 AM
Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 12:55:19:329 PM	O Simple 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58:15:338 AM	Complex 3
	Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:56:40.872 AM	:
	Complex 3 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58:58:267 AM	:

As a result, only the firstName column is affected, as shown in the following image.

Example 2

In this example, in the firstName attribute column, the multicolumn operation Complex 1 is dragged to the bottom, below a Simple 3 (containing a simple operation) and Complex 2 (containing a multicolumn operation), as shown in the following image.

Rules for firstName attribute	Rules for lastName attribute	Rules for fullName attribute
customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09-18-02-590 PM	customer_cleanse_name created on 2017-05-05 09:18-02-590 PM	◆ Simple 0 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59:54:310 AM
Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 12.03-22.754 PM	C Simple 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:57:20:123 AM	customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09:18:02:590 PM
O Simple 3 Last updated by Ikulyk on 2017-08-10 11-59-25-915 AM	Complex 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59-16:649 AM	Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:56:40:872.AM
Complex 1 Let resided by rauge or 2017 db 10 (1:50 to 2017)	C Simple 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-06-10 11:58:15:338 AM	Complex 3 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58:58:267 AM
	Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:56:40:872 AM	:
	Complex 3 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58:58:267 AM	÷

As a result, the firstName and lastName attribute columns are affected, as shown in the following image.

Rules for firstName attribute	Rules for lastName attribute	Rules for fullName attribute
customer_cleanse_name created on 2017-05-05 09:18:02:590 PM	customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 09-18-02-590 PM	Simple 0 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:59:54:310 AM
O Simple 3 Last updated by nkuljk on 2017-08-10 12:31:16:731 PM	C Simple 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:57:20:123 AM	customer_cleanse_name Created on 2017-05-05 00:18:02:590 PM
Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyt on 2017.08-10 12:04:47:657 PM	C Simple 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58:15:338 AM	Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 11-56-40-872 AM
Complex 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 12:31:44:224 PM	Complex 2 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 12:03:22:469 PM	Complex 3
	Complex 1 Last updated by nkulyk on 2017-08-10 12:04-10:773 PM	:
	O Complex 3 Last updated by rikulyk on 2017-08-10 11:58:58:267 AM	:

Example 3

In this example, in the lastName attribute column, the multicolumn operation Complex 3 is dragged to the bottom below all other rules containing simple and multicolumn operations, as shown in the following image.



As a result, the lastName and fullName attribute columns are affected, as shown in the following image.



Reordering Operations

You can move an operation to a different location by dragging and dropping it to the location you wish.

An icon appears for the operation you are dragging, as shown in the following image.



Only collapsed operations can be moved.

Operations can also be moved to any location in the Rules panel. Operations cannot be dropped outside of the Rules panel.

Operations cannot be moved if another operation inside the rule is opened in configuration mode.



Multicolumn operations cannot be moved at all, as shown in the following image.

Executing Rules and Operations

After the rules or operations have been reordered in the Rules panel, their order will also be changed in the Execute rules dialog, and the rules will be executed in the new order and operation they appear in.

The following image shows the Execute rules dialog prior to reordering the rules.



The following image shows the new order of Rules in the Execute rules dialog after the rules have been reordered in the Rules panel.



Changing Content Types

Changing content types allows you to create alternative types of data related to attributes. You can use custom data types to relate to an attribute, operation, and rule that will help you better understand your work and data involved.

For example, if you use the SSN attribute often, you can create corresponding content types that will be related to that attribute and as well as others.

You can add and change content types from the content menu by clicking on *Change content type*, as shown in the following image.

\equiv	55N [A· Z]	dateOfBirth	gender [A·Z]
1	7168	Add to Filter	7168
2	7156	Compare to Original	7156
3	8156	Change content type	8156
4	8152	Hide Column	8152
5	8162	SORT	8162
6	9936	Ascending	9936
7	9930	Descending	9930
8	3438	10/12/2017	3438
9	9932	10/12/2017	9932

The Change content type dialog appears where you can select and change content types.

The following list corresponds to the image below.

- 1. Change content type header
- 2. Current content type section
- 3. Select content type section
- 4. Search field
- 5. Content type list

6. Cancel/Change buttons



The Current content type section displays information regarding the current content type assigned to the attribute. If a content type is added, it will be shown in the grid header, as shown in the following image.

≡	Name [A·Z]	BirthDate [A-Z], DateOfBirth	SSN [123], SSN	Country [A·Z]. Country	Phone [A-Z], Phone	Email [A·Z], Email
1	John D. White	1987-24-10	5698531	United States of America	1 (800) 736-6130	WhiteJohn@internet.com

If there is no content type that is added, then there will be no content type in the grid header and the following message will appear in the Current content type section for the Change content type dialog:

No content type

The Select content type section contains information regarding all available content types, as swell as a search field for searching content types, as shown in the following image.



The available content types appear in the content type list, as shown in the following image.

Change conte	ent type
Current conte Country	ent type
Select conter	nt type
Content type	goes here
Date of Birth	•
Email Email Address	
CompanyLega Company Legal F	orm
Country Country	•
	Cancel Change
The content type name and description appears for each item in the list.

The list of available content types is defined by the content_types.xml file located inside the Repository Service resources, as shown in the following image.



The following image shows a sample syntax structure of the XML file.

Notes:

- □ The *name* and *description* set in the content_type.xml file above will appear as the name of the content type in OmniDesigner and Workbench user interface.
- □ *fieldType* (if specified) is a Content type that will be available only for the given attribute type in the Personal Edition user interface. If it is not specified, then it is available for all attribute types.

After selecting the content type from the list, it will be set in the Current content type section.

Click Change to assign it to a column and have it appear in the column header.

If you change one content type to another type in a specific column, a confirmation message appears, as shown in the following image.



Resetting Your Session

The Reset Session button allows you to return the Personal Edition data to the default state without removing all the rules you have added.

The Reset Session button is located at the bottom left corner of the Profile and Data Grid pages, as shown in the following image.

Omni	-Gen Personal Edition												(?
.al	Add Data Source Reset Export Project Q =	Custo	mer									Execut	te rules
	~ Customer ア生 回 ビ Customer1.xixx, 10 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2_	+ Add F	ilter										
	niddleName	fullName - All Records - 10											
	lastName	Populated 10 Blank 0 Distinct 10											
	fullName					•							
	ZIP									Reco	rds per page:	100 •	
	Age Salary	Ξ	firstNa [A·Z]	middle [A-Z]	lastNa [A-Z]	fullName [A·Z]	ZIP [123]	Age [123]	Salary [123]	Contac [MM/dd/y	Phone [123]	dobDat lyyyy-MM	
	ContactDate	1	Xavier	D.	Childress	Xavier	7287.233	33	98472	01/31/2	716697	1991-10	
	dobDateTime	2	Angeline	R.	Loper	Angelin	59313.64	50	48981	02/05/2	401398	1991-10	
		3	Fredia	E.	Sigler	Fredia E	90191.95	54	93056	02/28/2	961012	1991-10	÷
	 Superstore Superstore visx, 9994 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/0 	4	Eddie	τ.	Корр	Eddie T	4301.043	33	53848	03/14/2	285319	1991-10	
	Superiore states	5	Jaclyn	E.	Morten	Jaclyn E	16698.9	34	81686	04/20/2	523372	1991-10	
	 Suppliers Suppliers.csv, 11 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2018 	6	Meggan	Z.	Wertz	Meggan	7119.381	58	83464	05/25/2		1991-10	
	→ Car	7	Miriam	L.	Norris	Miriam	2757.336	28	44700	07/14/2		1991-10	
	Car.csv, 406 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2018	8	Marcos	Ν.	Klein	Marcos	98578.1	31	90455	07/25/2		1991-10	
	• Customer	9	Lamar	E.	Wilkers	Lamar E	17119.38	54	42303	07/28/2	941491	1991-10	
	Customer.db, 1 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2018	10	Ramona	U.	Mclaug	Ramon	28029.6	47	48478	08/31/2	907526	1991-10	
С	 COUNTRIES COUNTRIES.csv, 24 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2 	1 to 10	of 10							First Previou	S Page 1 of 1	Next Last	

If you first navigate to the workbench and no changes have been made, or if the Reset Session functionality was already performed, then the Reset Session button will be disabled, as shown in the following image.

Omni	-Gen Personal Edition	
.al	Add Data Source Reset Export Project Q =	
=	- Customer の上間に Customer1xlsx, 10 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2	^
	firstName	
	middleName	
	lastName	
	fuliName	
	ZIP	
	Age	
	Salary	
	ContactDate	
	Phone	
	dobDateTime	A
	 Superstore Superstore xlsx, 9994 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/0 	
	Suppliers Suppliers, csv, 11 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2018	
	 Car Car.csv, 406 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2018 	
	Customer Customer.db, 1 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2018	
\bigcirc	COUNTRIES COUNTRIES.couNTRIES.csv, 24 rows, added: 10/05/2018, modified: 10/05/2	

The Reset Session button will be available for use after adding a rule or filter.

A confirmation dialog appears after clicking the Reset Session button, as shown in the following image.

Reset session
You are going to reset current session. All rules will be set to defaults.
Cancel Reset

After resetting a session, the option page will be reloaded and all the added filters and rules that were created or executed will be removed. Additionally, the Personal Edition data will return to its default state.

However, the ability to reset a session is not always available. You cannot reset a session while the rules are processing. If you hover the cursor over the Reset Session button during a rules execution, a tooltip appears informing you to wait for the execution to finish, as shown in the following image.



If no data is available, the Reset Session button will also be disabled, as shown in the following image.



Feedback

Customer success is our top priority. Connect with us today!

Information Builders Technical Content Management team is comprised of many talented individuals who work together to design and deliver quality technical documentation products. Your feedback supports our ongoing efforts!

You can also preview new innovations to get an early look at new content products and services. Your participation helps us create great experiences for every customer.

To send us feedback or make a connection, contact Sarah Buccellato, Technical Editor, Technical Content Management at Sarah_Buccellato@ibi.com.

To request permission to repurpose copyrighted material, please contact Frances Gambino, Vice President, Technical Content Management at *Frances_Gambino@ibi.com*.

Inf%rmation Builders

iWay

⁷ Omni-Gen[™] Personal Edition Getting Started Guide

Release 3.9

DN3502343.0719

Information Builders, Inc. Two Penn Plaza New York, NY 10121-2898

